
CHAIRPERSON                                                                                                                                                                                         TASK FORCE  MEMBERS 
THOMAS MORGAN                                                                                                                                                                                  MYLES JOHNSON 
                    MONICA SCHAFER 
                    IRENE CAHILL 
                    RANDY MAIVILLE 

 
INGHAM COUNTY 2023 STRATEGIC PLANNING TASK FORCE 

P.O. Box 319, Mason, Michigan  48854   Telephone (517) 676-7206  Fax (517) 676-7306 
 

THE STRATEGIC PLANNING TASK FORCE WILL MEET ON THURSDAY, MAY 18, 2023 AT 
2:00 P.M., IN CONFERENCE ROOM D&E, HUMAN SERVICES BUILDING, 5303 S. CEDAR, 
LANSING AND VIRTUALLY AT: 
 
https://ingham.zoom.us/j/83192279243?pwd=cXJBR2srMmNKYnowYWxHSWZXVFJUdz09 
 
 
Call to Order 
Approval of April 20, 2023 Draft Minutes 
Additions to the Agenda 
Limited Public Comment 
 
1. Finish SWOT Analysis 
2. Refresh Core Values and Verify, Revise (if necessary) Mission and Vision and Sketch 

Out Potential Strategic Areas of Focus 
3. Additional July Meeting (Discussion) 
 
 
Announcements 
Public Comment 
Adjournment 
 

 
The next meeting is June 15, 2023 at 11:00 a.m. 

https://ingham.zoom.us/j/83192279243?pwd=cXJBR2srMmNKYnowYWxHSWZXVFJUdz09


i 
 

  2023 Strategic Planning Task Force 
P.O. Box 319, Mason, Michigan 48854 Telephone (517) 676-7206 FAX (517) 676-7306  

 
DRAFT MINUTES   

April 20, 2023 
 

Members Present: Commissioner Morgan, Commissioner Schafer 
 
Members Absent: Commissioner Johnson (virtual), Commissioner Cahill (virtual), 

Commissioner Maiville 
 
Others Present: Deputy Controller Jared Cypher, Assistant to Controller Rachel 

Prettenhofer, Budget Analyst Jill Bauer, Commissioner Pawar (virtual), 
Community Health Centers Director Anne Barna, Medical Health Office 
Shoyinka, Kulik Strategic Advisors Representative Marco Alcor, Kulik 
Strategic Advisors Representative Tracy Kulik, Mejorando Group 
Representative Patrick Ibarra (virtual) 

 
Call to Order: The 2023 Strategic Planning Task Force meeting was called to order by 

Commissioner Morgan at 11:01 a.m., Thursday, April 20, 2023 at 5303 
Cedar Street, Lansing, Michigan Human Services Building Conference 
Room A and virtually via Zoom.  

 
Additions to the Agenda: None. 
 
Limited Public Comment: None. 
 
1. Ingham County Strategic Plan Kick-Off 

 
Mr. Ibarra began by providing an overview and stated that he allotting himself about 2 
hours max. and at least 1 hour for Kulik Strategic Advisors. 
  
Discussion. 
 
Commissioner Morgan stated that he wants staff to be leading in the discussion and 
process to make sure they feel open and comfortable talking about what they encounter 
daily.  
 
Mr. Ibarra stated that he will explore that. He then asked the taskforce what benefits of 
the Ingham County government are. He asked whether or not Ingham County is output or 
outcome based. 
  
Mr. Cypher explained that that answer is a mixed bag. The job of the County is to make 
sure that residents are benefitting from its services and with as few bureaucratic barriers 
as possible. 



ii 
 

 
Commissioner Cahill stated that she thinks Ingham County is ready to go for emergency 
services, and it is not reactionary. She further stated that a lot of what the County does is 
impressive and the citizens are very engaged as well. 
 
Commissioner Schafer stated that one of biggest takeaways is that citizens in outlying 
areas don’t feel heard in citizen engagement. Engagement throughout the entire county is 
important, not just major in cities. 
 
Commissioner Morgan stated that we have a very diverse county with a very diverse set 
of people and divergent cultures, so it is a challenge to engage everyone.  
 
Commissioner Schafer stated that sometimes diversity makes a little bit of  a divide. It’s 
about bringing the whole county together, not just sections. 
 
Discussion. 
 
Dr. Shoyinka said that it sounds like what we’re looking for is the context of equity: 
making sure everyone gets what they need.  
 
Commissioner Cahill stated that Ingham County is a connection of small towns all 
together and that it is really the same thing. She further stated that she is looking forward 
to upgrades to the conference rooms and getting more people engaged with committee 
and Board meetings 
 
Mr. Ibarra explained that government is finding that there is a blend between one size fits 
all and customization. He further explained that government tends to struggle with a 
generalized approach and customized approach at the same time. 
 
Commissioner Morgan stated that we have a fiduciary responsibility to use tax dollars as 
effectively as possible. 
  
Commissioner Schafer asked how we connect the people. She stated that Commissioner 
Cahill has a point but when everyone is condensed, they have all of those resources. The 
outskirts need easier access to these resources, such as CATA.  
 
Mr. Ibarra continued with his presentation and stated that today is 3rd item on his process 
list where we are reviewing input and will do a SWOT analysis. He further stated that he 
has homework for the Committee for the May 18 meeting. He stated that the committee 
should review the County’s core values and revise the Mission and Vision and sketch out 
areas of focus and possible goals. He explained that he is trying to make meetings as 
efficient as possible, so there will be some work in between meetings. After May 18, 
there will be more homework and it is possible we may need a July meeting.  



iii 
 

 
Mr. Ibarra continued on to say that the strategic plan is a priority setting process and is 
used to guide decision making. The County’s most precious resource is time not money 
and some items in the Strategic Plan are enhancements, not improvements. He asked how 
we communicate the adopted Strategic Plan to employees once it is adopted. He 
explained that not everything in the Strategic Plan is quantitatively measured, it may 
instead be qualitative. We need to consider the opportunities going forward. He further 
explained that we can be pushed and pulled in different directions and strategic planning 
can help the Board of Commissioners be very intentional about what it will and will not 
do. He stated that the vision is poetry, the mission is plumbing. 
 
Commissioner Morgan left the meeting at 11:30 a.m. 
 
Mr. Ibarra stated that he would go through the Strategic Plan process page with the Task 
Force. He explained that when we think about cooking, adding more ingredients doesn’t 
always make for a better meal, it is instead about discerning the right ingredients. 
 
Commissioner Morgan returned to the meeting at 11:32 a.m. 
 
Mr. Ibarra stated that more is not always better and he encourages the Task Force to think 
critically and problem-solve. The Strategic Plan is less a puzzle and more like Legos. He 
further stated that the Strategic Plan is not a substitute for a budget and asked what people 
see as the biggest challenges, what they would like to see/what are their goals/objectives 
for the County. He stated that with his individual interviews, he got a good sample of 
elected and appointed officials. Main concerns were economic/fiscal/money concerns for 
the County future, the pace, etc. He explained that today younger people see work as a 
life-work balance not a work-life balance and so we should try to circle back around to 
the delivery of services. He stated that people in government love change and that 
Environmental Sustainability and DEI are becoming a part of government initiatives. He 
asked what the County is still doing that should be considered in this regard. He further 
asked what the Task Forces sees as the headwinds. He also asked what some of the trends 
we need to be aware of are in the County. 
 
Commissioner Schafer stated that we should consider recycling and where we are going 
with it and further stated that taxes are at all-time highs for property taxes in Ingham 
County.  
 
Commissioner Morgan stated that the University of Michigan is set to takeover the 
hospital, which will bring a lot of money, jobs, and brainpower in relation to it to the 
County. He asked if we ca provide the support and resources needed for this move. 
 
Ms. Barna stated that it is also important to understand that any gains we have made over 
the years have not necessarily been shared with all demographics. 



iv 
 

 
Dr. Shoyinka stated that if we have more talent coming in, it could widen the 
demographic gap even more. 
 
Mr. Cypher stated that the trouble for ourselves is attracting attention to County jobs. He 
stated that we may see ourselves struggling to fill vacancies with talent. 
 
Commissioner Schafer stated that the challenge when talking with people about coming 
to the area, the concern is that Ingham has the highest millage rates. Different areas 
around Ingham County have lower millage rates and that we have to be aware of the 
millage rates that fall into the County. She further stated that we need to ask why the 
private sector not filling the housing void in Ingham County. She asked if it is due to too 
much regulation and asked if we need to look at other issues or ways to entice the private 
sector into Ingham County. She stated that we need a roundtable to find out why they are 
not bringing in services and further stated that the private sector should be able to do it. 
 
Discussion. 
 
Mr. Cypher stated that property taxes are really the only option for our revenue 
adjustment streams. 
 
Commissioner Morgan explained that everything we do is very constrained by state law 
and regulation and everything we do is outlined pretty clearly. 
 
Mr. Ibarra explained that there are a lot of moving parts and trying to reconcile them is 
always difficult. He stated that there is no shortage of demand and that we may not 
always be in the driver seat. Public Health, for example, is being redefined, and some 
would say that public safety is a part of public health as well as mental health, well-being, 
behavioral health, etc.  
 
Commissioner  Morgan stated that there would be 5 minute break for the Task Force at 
12:02 p.m. 
 
The Task Force returned and Commissioner Morgan called the meeting to order at 12:07 
p.m. 
 
Mr. Ibarra stated that the Task Force should go over the criteria for a SWOT analysis and 
think about the  County as an organization and service provider. He further stated that we 
should capitalize on the County’s strengths and what they are. 
 
Commissioner Morgan stated that the Ingham County community has solid foundations, 
especially with MSU, Lansing being State Seat, etc. and that we have stability as far as 



v 
 

large businesses go, so we also have housing, services, and income as well as structural 
advantages. He further stated that we don’t run the risk of becoming a crater community. 
 
Ms. Bauer stated that the Ingham County Parks & Trails are also available for very fun 
and inexpensive activities. It is very beneficial to the County. 
 
Mr. Cypher stated that the Ingham County government itself is financially healthy. 
 
Commissioner Schafer stated that Ingham County is a healthy and diverse work force, 
especially if we were to capitalize on MSU and other schools and universities in the area. 
She further stated that we have an opportunity to capitalize on skilled trades if we work 
with those schools and universities. 
 
Commissioner Morgan stated that we have a good government, good cultural diversity. 
The County is fairly stable and is in-line with mainstream culture as well, but we do not 
politically argue at meetings along party lines. 
 
Ms. Barna stated that the County has also gained a lot of support over the years. 
 
Commissioner Pawar stated that some strengths of the County are that the community 
members seek education and leadership looks for diversity. She further stated that a 
strong point is that we are a fact-based County. 
 
Mr. Ibarra stated that it is also important to look at some of the weaknesses/areas for 
improvement but not just in the County itself, but also in consideration of the fact that a 
lot of governments have issues with apathy. 
 
Ms. Bauer stated that one weakness for the County is communication,  both internally 
and externally. She explained that we don’t share strategic planning initiatives, etc. and 
that we have so many new people that no one really realizes our vision. 
 
Mr. Cypher stated that he is a believer in mission and vision statements. He stated that all 
of the Department Heads, Elected Officials, and Commissioners should know the County 
mission statement. 
 
Dr. Shoyinka stated that at orientation the vision and mission should be elaborated on 
more on a county level, not just with Human Resources. 
 
Commissioner Schafer stated that as a new commissioner, the Health Department had 
invited her to come meet with them, but most of that with other department had to be setn 
up on her own. She further stated that it would probably be better when new 
commissioners come to the County to have meetings setup with the different 
departments, maybe we even need an orientation week. She further stated that when we 



vi 
 

look at trust issues with the community, one of the things that we need to build on is the 
very diverse background of the County. She explained that in her district there was a lot 
of conflict with too much regulation versus other counties during COVID-19 and it broke 
down a lot of trust within the community and the County government. She stated that we 
need to break down barriers a little more to build the trust back. 
 
Commissioner Cahill stated that she thinks communication is important and that all levels 
should be aware of it. She further stated that she is not sure “trust” is the right word,, but 
perhaps “awareness” for sure. She stated that she thinks the County is quite good with 
overall services and that the only thing she would like is to see more kiosks etc. for 
questions and information. She stated that rules are made to be broken, but regulation 
helps. 
 
Commissioner Pawar stated that a weakness is effective communication to members of 
the community. 

 
Ms. Barna stated that the level of bureaucracy needed to make things happen in the 
County is a weakness. She explained that the level of time staff spends on a contract, 
resolutions, etc. is very onerous but often needs to be done “quickly”. 
 
Commissioner Schafer stated that there are also other areas to look at for the County in 
opportunities, broadband, and infrastructure. 
 
Mr. Ibarra stated that he will send out his notes and have everyone respond with their 
input. He will then put it all together and send out the final document. He stated that 
everyone should also consider their homework for the next meeting. 

 
Commissioner Morgan stated that if anyone shares thoughts and ideas with Mr. Ibarra, 
they should use the County email so that it is on public record. 
 

2. Review of Spending Plan 
 
Ms. Barna stated that during the presentation, the Task Force should keep in mind that 
some of the trauma that public health professionals experience is pretty overwhelming. 
There is lots of turn over and emergence of new talent. 
 
Dr. Shoyinka stated that the goal of the Health Department Strategic Plan is to move on 
from our COVID-19 experience. She explained that the pandemic exacerbated prior 
issues and even though the Health Department has regulations, they were not able to keep 
up on them during the pandemic and are now trying to get back to it. She further stated 
that the world as we know it not the same and public health itself is being reimagined. No 
matter how good things look to day, we can always have another health threat, and if we 



vii 
 

have another similar pandemic to COVID-19, most of her Health Department staff will 
leave. She told the Task Force that she would love input from them. 
 
Ms. Kulik thanked the Task Force for allowing her to sit through the Strategic Plan for 
County. She stated that the Health Department has almost same timeline as the County 
and that it is very helpful. She further stated that we have a very progressive Health 
Department that is very data-driven and acts on that data. She stated that the Ingham 
County Health Department is acclaimed by the State and others. 
 
Ms. Kulik began the presentation. 
 
Ms. Barna listed the different divisions of the Health Department for reference. 
 
Ms. Kulik stated that we are unique to have the Community Health Centers that we do 
(i.e. a direct services arm) and that we are coveted in this regard. In 2010, when the 
Affordable Care Act passed, it really shifted things and gave an opportunity for health 
departments to have grab federal accreditation, but that it closed now. 
 
Ms. Kulik resumed presentation.  
 
Dr. Shoyinka stated that some of the things we want to build are the healing process and 
what to do to move forward. She explained that partnerships are a concern and that she 
wants to utilize those. A community partnership is a big piece of the Health Department 
Strategic Plan goal. 
 
Ms. Kulik resumed the presentation. 
 
Dr. Shoyinka explained that during pandemic employment levels were better, which 
shows the Health Workers’ commitment. It was after the pandemic that there was a sort 
exodus. She further explained that prior to pandemic, the public health workforce was 
significantly reduced nationwide about ten years ago and it never recovered from that, so 
with the mass exodus of healthcare workers from the industry after the pandemic, they 
had an even smaller pool. 
 
Ms. Kulik stated that public health nationally has been chronically underfunded and when 
COVID-19 hit, there was a tidal wave of money, from the Federal branch in particular, 
and now that funding has been taken away at end pf pandemic. 
 
Dr. Shoyinka stated that the influx of funding didn’t really help either because it had a 
specific timeline in which it had to be spent. 
 



viii 
 

Ms. Kulik explained that the Ingham County Health Department has a very broad 
spectrum of services, even compared to larger departments. The Ingham County Health 
Department is a provider of last resort and first resort in many of its divisions. 
 
Commissioner Morgan stated that we need to educate the community at large that the 
Health Department is for everyone, not just certain people. 
 
Dr. Shoyinka stated that one thing the pandemic did do was make people aware of what 
the Ingham County Health Department does. One thing we need to do better, however, is 
communicate better that it is not just for the poor and data-driven initiatives. 
 
Ms. Kulik stated that we should think about how the Health Department work with 
restaurants in the future so that we could work collaboratively to address the next health 
crisis or pandemic. She explained that, eventually, the restaurants s figured it out, but in 
future the Health Department could help and work with them. 
 
Commissioner Morgan stated  that the outcome was determined by culture and because 
the restaurants deemed it a risk factor they  were willing to take. 
 
Dr. Shoyinka stated that one goal of the Ingham County Health Department is to find a 
better balance. 
 
Ms. Barna stated that the next pathogen could be different. 
 
Discussion. 

 
Commissioner Schafer stated that first and foremost is  that the support for the Health 
Department is unwavering and they are at 100% He further stated that if anything, what 
people have learned from COVID-19 is self-responsibility but also that they need to 
know the pros and cons. A lot of the strife was that people felt they didn’t have the ability 
to be self-responsible. She further stated that she volunteered/was hired to help anyone 
who was dealing with a loved one passing away and allowing them to see them, but that 
was her risk. She stated that there had been mandates in the hospital in different settings 
and those who chose not to follow, left the workforce. She further explained that we also 
had big businesses that emerged as well. She stated that people have to have the ability to 
take on their own risk. 

 
Announcements: None. 
 
Public Comment: None. 
 
The April 20, 2023 Strategic Planning Task Force meeting adjourned at 1:02 p.m.    



1 
 



2 
 



3 
 



4 
 



5 
 



6 
 



7 
 



8 
 



9 
 



10 
 



11 
 



12 
 



13 
 



14 
 



15 
 



16 
 



17 
 



18 
 

 


